
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee South 
Wednesday, 5th March, 2014 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Subcommittee South, which 
will be held at:  
 
Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
on Wednesday, 5th March, 2014 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Jackie Leither (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564756   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), N Wright (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, G Chambers, 
K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, L Girling, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, L Leonard, A Lion, 
H Mann, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, B Sandler, Mrs T Thomas, H Ulkun, 
Mrs L Wagland, Ms S Watson and D Wixley 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 5 March 2014 
 

2 

public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  
 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties). 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will 
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become 
part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should speak the webcasting officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 22) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held of 5 February 
2014 as a correct record (attached). 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 5 March 2014 
 

3 

 
 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 23 - 50) 

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 

as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:   
 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 5 March 2014 
 

4 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan 

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7

http://www.software-partners.co.uk
http://www.software-partners.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2013-14 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

Cllr James 
Hart 

Cllr Girling 

Cllr Angold-
Stephens 

Cllr 
Chambers 

Cllr Mann Cllr 
Mohindra 

Cllr Pond Cllr 
Sandler 

Cllr 
Wagland 

Cllr Watson Cllr Wixley 

Cllr Cohen Cllr Jennie 
Hart 
  

Cllr 
Knapman 

Cllr Leonard 

Cllr Wright Cllr Chana Cllr 
Cochrane 

Cllr Lion 

Cllr Ulkun 

Cllr Mann Cllr 
Thomas 

Cllr Markham 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 

South 
Date: 5 February 2014  

    
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
Time: 7.34 - 8.40 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Hart (Chairman), N Wright (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, K Chana, 
Mrs T Cochrane, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, L Leonard, A Lion, H Mann, 
J Markham, Mrs C Pond, B Sandler, H Ulkun and D Wixley 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: G Chambers, R Cohen, L Girling, G Mohindra, Mrs T Thomas, 

Mrs L Wagland and Ms S Watson 
  
Officers 
Present: 

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and A Hendry 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
 

  
 

63. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 
 

64. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2014 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to adding the Sub-
Committee Chairman, Councillor J Hart, to the list of apologies received. 

 
65. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(1) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 

declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue 
of knowing the Manager there. The Councillor indicated that he would remain 
in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

 
• EPF/1448/13 Sainsburys Supermarkets Ltd, Old Station Road, Loughton 

IG10 4PE 
 

(2) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue 
of having attended, in an official capacity, the 10th anniversary celebrations for 
this establishment. The applicant had been his host. The Councillor indicated 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Area Planning Subcommittee South  5 February 2014 

2 

that he would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and 
voting thereon: 

 
• EPF/1931/13 268 High Road, Loughton IG10 1RB 

 
(3) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J Knapman 

declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue 
of having attended a meeting connected with this application. The Councillor 
indicated that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 

 
• EPF/2188/13 the Paddock, Grove Lane, Chigwell IG7 6JF 

 
66. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
The Planning Officer, Mr S Solon, informed the Sub-Committee that planning pre-
application enquiries in respect of non-householder development were now being 
published in the Bulletin. This enabled Members to have an input at the pre-
application stage.  Members were therefore encouraged to contact the Case Officer 
dealing with an enquiry they were interested in for informal discussion. 
 

67. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the planning applications numbered 1 – 8 be determined as set out in 

the attached schedule to these minutes. 
 

68. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 12



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0017/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Chigwell Lodge  

122 High Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5AR 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

TPO/40/09; 1 x Birch - Fell 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=558453 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
1 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 

Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

2 A replacement tree of a species, size and in a position as agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, shall be planted and inspected and agreed to be in 
accordance with the details prior to implementation of the felling hereby agreed, 
unless varied with a written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a 
period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously damaged and defective 
another tree of the same species and size of that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

 

3Page 13



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1448/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Sainsburys Supermarkets Ltd  

Old Station Road  
Loughton  
Essex  
IG10 4PE 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Variation of condition 17 of EPF/0400/00 to revise delivery hours to 
6.00am to 11.00pm Mondays to Saturdays and 8.00am to 10.00pm 
on Sundays. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=551591 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 No trade deliveries shall be taken at or despatched from the store outside the period 
6.00 a.m. to 11 p.m. Mondays to Saturdays or 8.00 a.m. to 10 p.m. on Sundays. 
Reversing alarms on delivery vehicles shall be switched off outside store opening 
times. Any refrigerated lorry visiting the site shall be provided with an electrical hook 
up to the store, and that hook up shall be used to power the refrigerated units.  
 

 
 

4 Page 14



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1931/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 268 High Road  

Loughton  
Essex 
IG10 1RB  
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Variation of condition 5 'Opening times' of planning consent 
EPF/1136/93 to allow premises to stay open an additional hour till 
24.00 hours. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553971 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 This hot food take away premises shall only be open to customers between 11.00 
hours and 24.00 hours on Friday and Saturday and between 11.00 and 23.00 hours 
on Sunday to Thursday. 
 

 

5Page 15



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2265/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 111 Rous Road  

Buckhurst Hill  
Essex  
IG9 6BU 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Single storey front, side and rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=555930 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 Access to the flat roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance 
or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a seating area, 
roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area. 
 

 

6 Page 16



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2484/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 13 Queens Road  

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5BZ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Change of use of ground floor from use for purposes within Use 
Class A1 (Shops) to use for purposes within Use Class A2 
(Financial and Professional Services) 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=557111 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Site Location Plan, l QR/13/01 A; QR/13/04 
 

 

7Page 17



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2485/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 13 Queens Road  

Buckhurst Hill  
Essex  
IG9 5BZ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Change of use of first and second floors from taxi offices to two 
flats. (Use Class C3) 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (with conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=557112 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: Site Location Plan, QR/13/0, QR/13/02, QR/13/03, 
QR/13/04 and QR/F/01 
 

 
 

8 Page 18



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2489/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 152 - 154 Daneley Court Nursing Home  

Queens Road  
Buckhurst Hill  
Essex  
IG9 5BJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Variation of condition 2 on planning consent EPF/1785/12 allowed 
on appeal (Demolition of existing nursing home and the erection of 
14 apartments and associated car parking spaces, amenity space, 
bin and cycle stores, foul and surface water drainage and 
landscaping) to facilitate minor material amendments including 
alterations to internal layout, alterations to the number, size and 
position of windows, detail alterations to the roof design and to a 
balcony. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=557133 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun prior to 26th July 2016. 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1411-P0001 K; 1411-P002 K; 1411-P003 E.   
 

3 The development shall proceed using the external finishes approved under 
application reference EPF/1852/13, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.   
 

4 Hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of the 
building hereby approved.  The works shall be undertaken in accordance with details 
approved under application reference EPF/2047/13, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 

5 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 5 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 

9Page 19



species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place. 
 

6 Existing trees and hedges within the site shall be protected throughout construction 
of the approved development in accordance with details approved under application 
reference EPF/1651/13.   
 

7 Prior to the occupation of the building hereby approved, the proposed private drive 
shall be constructed to a minimum width of 5 metres for at least the first 6 metres 
from the back of the carriageway and provided with an appropriate dropped kerb 
crossing of the footway.   
 

8 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, redundant 
dropped kerbs and the lowered footway shall be reinstated in accordance with 
details approved under application reference EPF/2047/13, unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 

9 Prior to the first use of the new vehicular access into the site, means to prevent the 
discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
undertaken in accordance with details approved under application reference 
EPF/2047/13, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 

10 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved, identified land 
contamination shall be remediated in accordance with details approved under 
application reference EPF/2023/13. 
 

11 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved, bird and bat nesting 
boxes shall be installed in accordance with details approved under application 
reference EPF/1852/13. 
 

12 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the east side elevation as annotated on approved plan 1411-P003 E 
shall have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

14 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, privacy screens 
shall be erected to balconies in accordance with the details shown on approved plan 
1411-P003 E. 
 

15 Wheel washing equipment shall be installed and retained within the site for the 
duration of the construction of the development and shall be used to clean all 
vehicles using the site. 
 

 
Subject to the completion, by 5th May 2014 of an agreement under S106 of the Town & 
Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of a contribution of £38,211 towards education 
provision within the locality.  In the absence of the legal agreement (or deed of variation to 
that previously entered into) being completed within the required time, authority be 

10 Page 20



delegated to officers to refuse planning permission on the grounds of inadequate provision 
being made for educational facilities for occupiers of the proposed development.   
 

11Page 21



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2188/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: The Paddock 

Grove Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6JF 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD:  
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing stables and warehouse and erection of 6 
detached residential dwellings and new access. 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission 
 

 
 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
1 The site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The proposed development 

is inappropriate in the Green Belt and, by definition, harmful. It fails to protect 
the openness of the Green Belt and encroaches into the countryside to a 
significantly greater degree than existing structures on site. The details 
accompanying the application do not amount to very special circumstances 
sufficient to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt that would result from the 
development. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy GB2A and GB7A 
of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the aims and objectives of the 
NPPF. 
 

2 The proposed development would be detrimental to the visual amenities of 
the surrounding area and harmful to the character and appearance of this 
semi-rural location, contrary to policies DBE1, DBE2 and DBE4 of the 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the aims and objectives of the 
NPPF. 
 

3 The proposed sub-urban development proposed is at a scale at odds with 
the surrounding context and would harm the rural setting of Millers 
Farmhouse a Grade II Listed Building by diminishing its significance. 
Furthermore the materials palette proposed is wholly inappropriate and 
would detract from the appearance of Miller Farmhouse. Accordingly, the 
proposal is contrary to policy HC12 of the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the aims and objectives of the NPPF. 

 
 
 

12 Page 22



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

5 March 2014 
 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/0121/13 25 Forest Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5AF 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
24 

2. EPF/2418/13 28 High Beech Road 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4BL 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
28 

3. EPF/2529/13 29 Gravel Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6DA 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
32 

4. EPF/2696/13 Former Electrical Substation 
Station Way 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex  
IG9 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
36 

5. EPF/0121/14 25 Forest Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5AF 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

 
46 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

123  
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 
 
  

 

4 2
3 0

17

Silver Birch

27
21

19

1 7

1 3

FO
R ES T LA N

E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 1 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/0121/14 
Site Name: 25 Forest Lane, Chigwell 

IG7 5AF 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 24



Report Item No:  1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0121/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 25 Forest Lane 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5AF 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Ron Paton 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

TPO/EPF/16/97; Oak: Fell and replace. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=558912 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 
1 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 

Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

2 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since all applications to fell preserved trees are outside 
the scope of delegated powers.  
 
Description of Site  
 
The road is characterised by large detached properties of individual design, set back from the 
road. The front gardens contain many important veteran oak and hornbeam trees which are 
protected by Tree Preservation Orders. The oak tree which is the subject of this application is 
situated to the frontage of 25 Forest Lane within the highway verge. 
 
Description of Proposal  
 
Oak protected by TPO/EPF/16/97 
 

Page 25



Relevant History  
 
There are no recent records of pruning of this tree. 
 
Relevant Policies  
 
LL9: Felling of preserved trees. The Council will not give consent to fell a tree(s) protected by a 
TPO unless it is satisfied that this is necessary and justified. Any such consent will be conditional 
upon appropriate replacement of the tree(s). 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – were consulted. At the time of the report being written no 
comments had been received. These will be reported verbally at the Committee.  
 
Issues and Consideration 
 
Introduction  
This application is for the removal of a 16 metre tall, early phase, mature oak which stands within 
the highway verge.  
 
Last year an application was approved for the construction of two houses on the site of 25 Forest 
Lane (EPF/0535/13) and these works are now ongoing. As part of that application process a 
survey was undertaken of the tree which noted that it was in decline and recommended that it be 
removed. As the tree is within the ownership of Essex County Council Highways the developers 
approached them for their permission to fell and replace the tree.  
 
Essex County Council have inspected the tree and in principle agree to the removal of the tree due 
to its condition and ongoing decline subject to it being approved by this application. 
 
Key issues 
The key issues to be considered are –  

• The value of the tree in terms of the local amenity that it provides.  
• The health of the tree and its safe useful life expectancy. 
• The feasibility of replacement planting  

 
Dealing with each of these in turn: 
 
The value of the tree 
Whilst the tree does have public amenity value due to its location this will reduce as the tree 
continues to decline.  
 
The health of the trees 
The Oak is in severe general decline. It has at least 7 cavities within the main stem and a climbing 
inspection has been undertaken to assess potential bat habitats. During the inspection it was 
noted that the main stem was hollow, suggesting that it is further decayed than originally noted 
from the ground level inspections. The cavities have now been filled to prevent bats roosting, 
which would delay the felling of the tree.   
 
The safe useful life expectancy for these trees is estimated to be less than 5 years.  
 

Page 26



The feasibility of replacement  
The applicant has proposed to plant a 20-25cm girthed hornbeam tree in a similar location. This 
will complement two similar sized hornbeam trees which are to be planted within the front gardens 
of the new properties as part of an approved landscaping scheme. In view of the ongoing 
development of 25 Forest Lane it would be sensible to suggest that the new tree be planted at the 
same time as the landscaping for the new houses is undertaken. 
 
Conclusion  
 
Whilst this tree is prominent within the street scene, its condition is such that its safe useful life 
expectancy is limited. The applicant is proposing a suitable replacement and we would 
recommend that this application is approved.  
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please used the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:  
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Melinda Barham  
Direct Line Telephone number 01992 564120 
 
Or if not direct contact can be made please email; contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

34.4m34.4m

177

5

9

1 2
6

PH

11

1 3
2

1 4

1 3
6

10

14
15

3

1 1

3b
9

Police Station

2 0
a

2 4

39

2 0
a

2 4

39

2 4
a

31

2 0
1 8

19

1 8
a

30

6 56 5
69

61

2 9

3 93 9

1 5

38

34

1 5
1 9

32
34 1 9

32
36

18
a

26

20
a

20

15

50
a

50
a

5050

Police Station

to 1

3

177

A - E t o
1 2

8

1

1 2
6

49

2 4
a

69

30

61

49

1 8
a

2 0

9  1 1

31

1 8

1 4
a

7

15

1 4
a

1 2

4

9

8
10

36

28

48

42

26
a

38

2 9

48

42

7

Masonic Hall

18

3a

3

7

1 7

18
1

14

1 5

6

1 5

10

4

1 1

6

10

4

1 1

2 12 1

t o
1 3

6

A - E

PH

1 3
2

1 2
8

1

15

11

19

1

3 to

1 2

5

1 4

9  1 1

4

7

14

8

3b
3a

26

Masonic Hall

18

28

20
a

1 1

20

9

18
a

26
a

66

1 7

1

33

18

14

H
I G

H
 B

E E C
H

 R
O

A
D

C O
NN

A UG
HT  A V E N

UE

H
I G

H
 B

E E C
H

 R
O

A
D

SM
A

R
T'S LA

N
E

H I
G

H  
R O

A D

C O
NN

A UG
HT  A V E N

UE

SM
A

R
T'S LA

N
E

H I
G

H  
R O

A D

C
O

N
N

A
U

G
H

T  H
I L L

C
O

N
N

A
U

G
H

T  H
I L L

Car
Park

TCB

Car Park

Park

TCB

Car Park

Car

M
E W

S

S M
A R

T S
 L

A N
E

S M
A R

T S
 L

A N
E

M
E W

S

*

**

*
*

**

**

****

**

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 2 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2418/13 
Site Name: 28 High Beech Road, Loughton 

IG10 4BL 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 28



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2418/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 28 High Beech Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4BL 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr James Sewell 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of side addition and erection of two storey side 
extension, raising of height of roof, and provision of rear dormer 
window. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=556798 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee because the recommendation for approval is contrary to 
an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal, pursuant 
to the ‘constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, schedule 1, 
appendix A(g).  
 
Description of Site: 
 
A two storey detached house. Its neighbours are a similar yet remodelled house at number 30, 
and terraced flat roofed three storey town houses at numbers 26A to 18.  The house is not listed 
nor does it lie in a conservation area. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Demolition of side addition, erection of two storey extension, raising of height of roof and provision 
of rear dormer. 
  
Relevant History: 
 
None.  

Page 29



 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 - Loss of amenity.       
DBE10 – Residential extensions. 
 
These two policies are compliant with the NPPF.  
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee objected to this application. It was concerned 
that the proposal brought forward the building line at the south east point on the flank wall of the 
existing house thus losing the original form of the house, and reduced the integrity of this turn of 
the century Edwardian house. This was considered detrimental to the street scene and contrary to 
policy DBE10 of EFDC’s adopted Local Plan and Alterations.  
 
Members noted the neighbours concern regarding the effect of the proposals on the stability of the 
flank wall of his neighbouring property at no.26A High Beech Road. Should permission be granted, 
the Committee asked for conditions on working hours to minimise disturbance to neighbouring 
residents during construction. 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 6 properties consulted and no reply received. However, a neighbour at the 
neighbouring number 26A expressed concern to the Town Council regarding possible detrimental 
effect from construction works on the stability of his flank wall.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main feature of the existing house is a broad 2 storey front bay window with gabled roof over. 
To the side of this lies a smaller slightly recessed 2 storey section containing hall and a bedroom 
over, and to the side of this, and further recessed, lies a small 2 storey side addition. It is proposed 
to demolish the latter and erect a new two storey side addition on the same front plane as the hall, 
and also with raised floor levels to align with the floor levels of the existing house. The roof of the 
house is to be extended and raised, and with a rear dormer, a bedroom and shower room will be 
provided in the loft area.  
 
In terms of the appearance of the house some articulation to the front of the house will still be 
retained, and in particular the 2 storey bay window and gable over will still retain a significant 
projection – and this compares favourably with the neighbouring and similarly designed house at 
no. 30 – which regrettably has been altered in that the bay has been removed in favour of a 
flattened front elevation. The proposed front elevation will also retain the existing attractive porch 
feature, and this adds further interest to the appearance of the house. 
 
The extended roof contains a dormer at the rear. Although sizeable this dormer will be subordinate 
to the roof, and also views of it would be partly screened by large trees close to the rear 
boundaries of houses to the rear in Connaught Avenue. Having regard also to the flat roof 
appearance of the 3 storey town houses at numbers 26A to 18, and a large roof extension to 
number 30, the proposed dormer has an acceptable size and appearance.  
 
Comments on representations received:- 
 
In respect of the Town Council’s objection the proposed front elevation will still contain a fair 
degree of variety and articulation as mentioned above, and its appearance is acceptable. The 
property is not listed and it does not lie in a conservation area, and it would be unreasonable to 
insist that changes to the front of the house cannot be made.  
 

Page 30



The neighbour’s concern over the possibility that building works will affect the condition of his flank 
wall is not a material planning consideration – but it is a matter that is covered by Party Wall 
legislation – and a Party Wall agreement is very likely to be required for the proposed rebuilding of 
the 2 storey side addition.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
For the reasons given above this proposal complies with policies DBE9 and DBE10, and it is 
recommended that conditional planning permission be granted. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

123 

Page 31



 
 

 
123  

 
 

 
  

 

69.8m

74.7m

78.9m

House

1 6 5 a

Orchard

1 2

The Bungalow

1 9

1 5

11

D o v e s

2

1

3

4

The Maypole

C o t t a g e s

3a

41 9

7

11

8

2 1

3

El
Sub Sta

3 6

3 7

17

10

3 5

3 13 3

1 2

2 6

25

2 9

23

2 7

30

32

14

21

3 3

15

22

1 5

1 2

1

7

4

G R A V E L  C L O S E

M
A Y P O L E  D R I V E

O
R C H

A R D
W
A
Y

G R A V E L  L A N E

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 3 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2529/13 
Site Name: 29 Gravel Lane, Chigwell 

IG7 6DA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 32



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2529/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 Gravel Lane 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6DA 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Row 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs A L Peters 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Retention of sloping roof over existing outbuilding at foot of rear 
garden. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=557372 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 A replacement boundary fence shall be erected on the rear boundary of the site 
within 6 months of the date of this decision notice. This boundary fence shall be of 
the same design as the boundary fences recently erected on the side boundaries of 
the rear garden. No gate or access to Orchard Way shall be formed in this rear 
boundary fence at any time, unless prior approval has been granted by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
 

3 None of the conifer trees lying in the strip of land between the outbuilding and the 
rear boundary of the site shall be removed unless prior approval in writing has been 
granted by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
 

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation for approval is contrary to 
more than 4 objections received  which are material to the planning merits of the proposal 
(pursuant to the ‘constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, 
schedule 1, appendix A.(f).   
 
Description of Site 
 
A two storey semi detached house in a row of similar dwellings on the east side of Gravel Lane 
some 250m to the north of its junction with Lambourne Road. The property is not listed nor does it 

Page 33



lie within a conservation area. The end of a cul de sac known as Orchard Way lies to the rear of 
the rear boundary of the property. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Retention of a sloping roof over existing outbuilding at foot of rear garden. The out building is used 
as a gym incidental to the house, and storage is proposed in the roof. 
  
Relevant History; 
 
EPF/780/13 - Rear first floor extension - granted approval. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity. This policy is compliant with the NPPF.  
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – No objections.  
  
NEIGHBOURS – 7 properties consulted, including 4 in Orchard Way to the rear, and five replies 
received:-. 
 
18, ORCHARD WAY – object – this enormous roof has been erected prior to any approval. The 
effect of the sky high roof is ameliorated by a row of trees but if these are felled the building would 
loom over the area. The plans show a shower/toilet facility which is odd given that the house 
accommodates such facilities – this leads to the impression that the gym is intended for use by 
visitors who could gain access and parking via Orchard Way. The addition of a ‘shed’ on the plans 
could provide a porch for such entry. The roof is huge and totally out of keeping and should be 
removed - it may have been erected to facilitate future conversion into a house. 
 
16, ORCHARD WAY – object - combined with the ‘extra’ floor being added to the house this 
outbuilding represents over development of the site. The building of the roof was very noisy, and 
now the fence on to Orchard Way is not straight. 
 
17, ORCHARD WAY – object – the proposed gym use is not in keeping with a residential area, 
and the gym could be accessed by creating an opening in the fence onto Orchard Way, a public 
road. Hence the gym could be used by the public – which would be detrimental to the amenity of 
residents in Orchard Way. 
 
10, ORCHARD WAY – object – could affect light to Orchard Way, how will trees behind the 
outbuilding be accessed for pruning? The gym could have been provided in the house, and is it to 
be used as a business? will it cause excessive noise?, and the building and altered fence on to 
Orchard Way is unsightly. 
 
14, ORCHARD WAY – makes the same points as those raised by the occupier of no.10 Orchard 
Way. 
   
Issues and Considerations: 
 
This planning application seeks consent to retain a roof that has been nearly completed over an 
existing outbuilding (3.8m by 7.5m) at the rear of the rear garden. The applicants state that they 
were unaware of the need to obtain planning permission to erect the roof. The outbuilding is now 
used as a gym for the family living on the site, and the roof area will provide for additional domestic 
storage. 

Page 34



 
The roof is more steeply angled than is normal and it rises to a ridge height of 5.2m. A 1.2m gap 
exists between the outbuilding and the rear boundary of the site, which adjoins the end of the cul 
de sac of Orchard Way. In this gap lie tall conifer trees that provide significant screening of the 
building from Orchard Way, and hence the roof has a limited impact on visual amenity in Orchard 
Way. 
 
In respect of the amenity of neighbours at nos. 27 and 31 the outbuilding lies some 20m from the 
rears of these houses, and again trees and landscaping in these gardens provide some screening. 
No objections have been received from these neighbours on either side, and the proposed roof 
does not have a significant effect on their outlook and amenity.  
 
Comments on representations received. 
 
5 objections have been received from houses in Orchard Way to the rear, and it would appear that 
some noise and nuisance may have been caused when the roof was being erected. The line of 
trees screening this outbuilding from Orchard Way are to be retained, and a condition is proposed 
in this regard. The applicants have confirmed that the gym is to be used for their own domestic 
use, that it will not be used as a business, and they are happy to accept a condition to this effect. 
Additionally they are willing to accept a condition prohibiting any form of pedestrian gate/access 
being provided in the rear boundary fence onto Orchard Way at the rear. The applicants state they 
have been burgled from the rear and somewhat haphazard alterations they subsequently have 
made to this fence mean that it does look somewhat unsightly when viewed from Orchard Way. 
The have recently erected new 1.8m fences to either side boundary of the garden, and they 
propose to erect a similar fence on the rear boundary and again are willing to accept a condition in 
this respect.  
 
Conclusions: 
 
While the roof over this outbuilding is somewhat higher than average it does not result in an undue 
loss of amenity to nearby residents. Concerns raised from neighbours in Orchard Way to the rear 
are acknowledged but it needs to be emphasised that the proposed roof will sit on top of a private 
and domestic gym - it will not be used by members of the public gaining access from Orchard 
Way. It is recommended therefore that planning permission be granted subject to conditions. 
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
123  

 
 

 
  

 

36.9m

31.4m

29.3m

39.6m

U n d

C W

C F

W a
r d  

B d
y

C R

PO

Hall
Roding Valley

5 2

29

38

44

5 5

42

50

40

4 3

6 4

74

3 3

W o r k s
R o d i n g  V a l l e y  S t a t i o n

74c

66

54

80
76

72

68

70

78

4 7

66

72

78

88

60

92
90

86

29

3 3

172

166

BRO ADF I EL D W AY

S T A T I O N  W A Y

S T AT I ON
 AP P ROACH

S T A T I O N  W A Y

FB

LB

T C B

SL

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 4 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2696/13 
Site Name: Former Electrical Substation  

Station Way, Buckhurst Hill, IG9 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 36



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2696/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Electrical Substation  

Station Way  
Buckhurst Hill  
Essex 
IG9 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

APPLICANT: Greenplace Capital Ltd 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing Substation and facilities building, and 
erection of 2/3 storey block of 9no. 2 bed and 2no. 1 bed flats with 
associated car parking. (Revised application following 
EPF/2249/13) 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=558133 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: FBE_010; FBE_100 rev. A; FBE_101 rev. A; FBE_102 rev. 
A; FBE_103 rev. A; FBE_104 rev. A; FBE_200 rev. A; FBE_201; FBE_210 rev. A; 
FBE_211 rev. A.   
 

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 

Page 37



establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS: 5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 

Page 38



scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   
 

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

11 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing. 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

12 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

13 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the east facing flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured 
glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the rooms in 
which the windows are installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

Page 39



14 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Travel Information and 
Marketing Scheme for sustainable transport approved by Essex County Council.   
 

15 Prior to first occupation of the development, the proposed private drive shall be 
constructed to a minimum width of 5.5 metres for at least the first 6 metres within the 
site, tapering down to any lesser width. 
 

16 The proposed development shall not be occupied until such time as the vehicle 
parking area indicated on the approved plans, including any parking spaces for the 
mobility impaired, has been hard surfaced, sealed and marked out in parking bays.  
The vehicle parking area shall be retained in this form at all times.  The vehicle 
parking shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles that are 
related to the use of the development unless otherwise agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

17 The gradient of the proposed vehicular access shall be not steeper than 4% (1in 25) 
for the first 6 metres from the carriageway edge.   
 

18 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall 
be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the nearside edge of the carriageway.   
 

19 The development hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of the 
proposed refuse store indicated on drawing number FBE_100 rev. A have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
Subject to the completion of an agreement under S.106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 within 3 months requiring financial contributions of £28,330 (index linked to April 
2013 costs) for the provision of education.  Should the agreement not be completed by 5 
June 2014 authority is given for the application to be refused by Officers on the basis that 
the proposal fails to make proper provision for meeting the education need arising from the 
development. 
 
This application is before this Committee for the following reasons: 
 

1. It is an application for residential development consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless 
approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to The 
Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 
1, Appendix A.(d)) 

2. It is for a type of development that cannot be determined by Officers if more than two 
objections material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are received 
(Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 

3. The recommendation is for approval contrary to an objection from a local council which is 
material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  
Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)) 

 
Description of Site:  
   
The site is situated off the northern side of Station Way and contains a now disused sub station 
which served London Underground. Two buildings are still in place, one close to the rear of the 
site which is approximately 10.0m at its highest point, with a smaller structure of approximately 

Page 40



3.5m in height, and “T” shaped in front of this. The larger building is clearly visible from outside the 
site. The site is triangular in shape, and is bounded to the south by Station Way, to the north by 
the rail line and to the east by rear gardens serving Walnut Way. Land to the west is retained by 
London Underground and contains a new electrical sub station. The site descends to the front 
before forming a relatively level surface. The entire site is covered by a Tree Preservation Order. 
There is a screen of Leylandii trees along the boundary, and within gardens in Walnut Way. 
 
Station Way rises steadily from east to west and a parade of shops (with one level of residential 
accommodation above) are located on the opposite side of the road. Roding Valley Tube Station is 
also located across the roadway. The predominant style of dwelling in the area is traditional semi 
detached and short terraces. There are however flats nearby, including above the shops. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a block of flats containing 9 x 1-bed 
flats and 2 x 2-bed flats.   
 
Following the refusal and unsuccessful appeal of an earlier scheme, the design of the 
development has been considerably revised.  The proposed building would now be shorter than 
that which exists at present and generally shorter than that proposed previously (with the 
exception of the three storey gable element situated closest to the TfL land).  The design of the 
building was previously flat roofed, as is the existing substation building.  The design of the current 
proposal is considerably altered, to incorporate pitched roofs.  Most of the building would be two-
storey, with a second floor contained within the roof space above, with a full height three storey 
element being located closest to the railway line.     
 
The building would be situated approximately one metre off the side boundaries of the site with the 
rear gardens of 68 and 70 Walnut Way.  12 car parking spaces would be provided to the front of 
the building (partly beneath the front projection).   
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2652/10. Demolition of existing sub station and facilities building and erection of 3/4 storey 
block of 11 no. two bed flats with associated car parking. Refused 28/04/2011 for the following 
reasons: 
 
1 By reason of its bulk and flat roofed design the proposed block of flats would have a poor 

appearance that fails to respect its setting and the character and appearance of the 
locality, contrary to policies CP2(iv), CP3 (v), CP7 and DBE1 of the Epping Forest District 
Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
2 By reason of its height and siting adjacent to the rear garden boundaries of neighbouring 

dwelling houses in Walnut Way together with the difference in levels between the site and 
neighbouring gardens, the proposed block of flats would appear excessively overbearing 
when seen from adjacent residential properties to the detriment of the amenities enjoyed 
by their occupants.  Accordingly the proposed development is contrary to policies CP7 and 
DBE9 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
3 By reason of its inadequate provision of off-street parking spaces the proposed 

development fails to comply with the September 2009 Parking Standards.  As a 
consequence it is likely to exacerbate a high demand for on-street parking in the locality to 
the detriment of its character.  Accordingly the proposed development is contrary to 
policies CP2 (iv), CP3 (v), CP7 and ST6 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and 
Alterations. 

 

Page 41



4 As demonstrated by its poor design, over-dominant appearance and lack of off-street 
parking provision the proposal would be an unsympathetic over-development of the site to 
the detriment of the character and visual amenities of the locality contrary to policies 
CP2(iv), CP3 (v), CP7 and DBE1 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
5 The proposal is for a noise sensitive development.  By reason of its siting in very close 

proximity to a railway the proposed flats and associated private amenity space would be 
exposed to high levels of noise.  The failure to submit a noise survey for the site sufficient 
to establish which noise exposure category it falls within prevents proper assessment of 
whether it is possible to mitigate the adverse impact of noise on the living conditions of the 
occupants of the flats and whether the development can be carried out in the form 
proposed.  As a consequence it is not appropriate to deal with this matter by the imposition 
of a planning condition and therefore the development is contrary to policy RP5A of the 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
EPF/2249/13.  Demolition of existing old substation/facilities building, and erection of 2/3 storey 
block of 9no. 2 bed and 2no. 1 bed flats with associated car parking.  Withdrawn.   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
 
CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3 – New Development 
CP4 – Energy Conservation 
CP5 – Sustainable Building  
CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas 
DBE6 – Car Parking in New Development 
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
DBE9 – Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
ST1 – Location of Development 
ST2 – Accessibility of Development  
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
H2A – Previously Developed Land 
H3A – Housing Density 
H4A – Dwelling Mix 
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes 
RP4 – Contaminated Land 
 
Also relevant are the policies and planning principles contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework (‘The Framework’).   
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Buckhurst Hill Parish Council and to 60 neighbouring 
properties.   
 
The following representations have been received to date: 
 

Page 42



BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL.  Strong objection.  Overdevelopment of the site.  Lack of 
parking facilities would cause additional parking issues in Station Way.  Lack of Amenities e.g. 
light and noise issues.  Overlooking on neighbouring properties.  Impact of planning application 
that has been granted for Walnut Way (EPF/0131/12).  Because of proximity to rail line, properties 
would require adequate/triple glazing.  Concerned as to number of inaccuracies in reports e.g. 
noise assessment took place when tube was not running.  Concern that drawings are inaccurate 
as extension of neighbouring properties are not shown.  Would suggest that there should be 
consultation with local residents in view of the impact on neighbouring properties.   
 
61; 160, 174; 176; 184 Forest Edge, 66, 68, Walnut Way, 74A and 76A Station Way and one with 
no address provided Objection.   

• Loss of privacy to 176 Forest Edge, 68, 72 Walnut Way.   
• Loss of light to 68 Walnut Way. Loss of privacy to 160, 174 Forest Edge.   
• Building out of scale and character with neighbouring properties and an eyesore.   
• Noise and pollution to garden areas from traffic/parking.   
• The proposed access off station road is dangerous. 
• Were the Council to approve the proposals significant levels of section 106 contributions 

should be sought for highways improvements including traffic calming and layout 
improvements to Station Road.  

• Would like to see a construction method statement to demonstrate how large vehicles will 
deliver construction materials to the site. I would also like to see restrictions on construction 
parking from adjacent streets. 

• Parking is inadequate and contrary to the Council’s standard. 
• Dust and noise during construction. 
• Impact of foundations on trees. 
• The proposal is similar to that rejected at appeal.   

 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues to be considered are the impacts of the proposed development on the amenities 
enjoyed by the occupiers of nearby neighbouring dwellings, on the character and appearance of 
the area and on highway safety.   
 
Neighbouring Amenity 
 
Concern is raised by the occupiers of several neighbouring dwellings in relation to amenity being 
reduced due to loss of light and privacy along with noise and disturbance from the use (particularly 
access to the car park) and also noise and dust nuisance during construction.   
 
In relation to the matter of light (and also outlook), it is properties in Walnut Way which would be 
most affected.  However, although building would sit closer to these properties by about 2.5m, its 
height would be comparable with that of the existing sub-station and its depth only slightly greater.  
Bearing in mind the part of the building that projects closer is lower in height than the existing 
building it is not considered that any reduction to light or outlook would be material.   
 
With regard to privacy, it will be necessary to ensure (by condition) that all windows in the eastern 
side facing elevation are fixed closed and obscure glazed.  This will safeguard the amenity of 
existing neighbouring residents whilst also not harming amenity for the future occupiers of the 
proposed development, as the affected windows are all secondary to front/rear facing windows, or 
they do not serve habitable rooms. 
 
Noise and disturbance from the car park and access would be less significant in relation to existing 
Walnut Way residents, as it would be located to the far end of their gardens.  It would have a 
greater impact upon future occupiers of the approved (but not yet constructed) dwellings in the 

Page 43



rear gardens of 76-78 Walnut Way but would not result in unsatisfactory amenity for the occupiers 
of those dwellings.   
 
Disruption during construction will be likely to cause nuisance and to some extent this would be 
unavoidable.  However, its impact may be limited by the imposition of planning conditions 
restricting working hours and ensuring wheel washing and dust controls are installed.   
 
Character and Appearance 
 
The design of the proposed development has been slightly altered following the previously 
withdrawn scheme, to address a design concern relating to the roof of the building (which 
contained a large and prominent section of flat roof).   
 
The revised building has accommodation spread across three floors, with part of the second floor 
being full height and the central section and side closest to Walnut Way having the second floor 
contained within the roof space.  The building would have an eaves height closest to Walnut Way 
of 5.4m, rising to a ridge of 10.1m (set in a further 4.5 metres from the edge of the building).  At its 
highest point (adjacent to the railway) the building would have an eaves height of 7.6m rising to a 
ridge of 11.6m.   
 
The building would predominantly have three sections: two gabled side wings, a central section 
with a crown roof and a front projection of the upper two floors, allowing for car parking 
underneath.  There would also be a small (3m deep) rear projection to the central section.   
 
The building would have a maximum depth of 29.8m and would be set back from the site boundary 
with Station Way by 26.8m.   
 
The design of the building previously proposed was criticised by the Inspector, who felt that the 
industrial scale and shape of that building, its flat roof and predominant use of brick would clearly 
reflect the character and appearance of the existing sub-station, whilst the surrounding townscape 
is overwhelmingly of conventional two storey housing.  It is considered that this revised design, 
with its use of traditional roof pitches and the palette of materials proposed (brick work, tile 
hanging and clay roof tiles) has addressed those concerns, presenting a building that would sit 
comfortably within the street scene.  It is considered that the street scene would be enhanced as a 
result of the proposed development.   
 
Highways and Car Parking 
 
Officers at County Highways have raised no objection to the development, subject to the 
imposition of planning conditions.  They advise that the site access has good visibility onto Station 
Way and is situated in very close proximity to the underground and local buses.  Indeed the 
Inspector for the previous appeal agreed the level of car parking was suitable, given the location.   
 
Other Matters 
 
Trees and Landscaping – the Council’s Arboricultural Officer has been consulted on the 
application and has advised as follows:  There are no trees on the site worthy of retention. 
However, there are several trees (Lime on the pavement to the front of the site; an ash and oak to 
the rear of the site; and a leylandii hedge in the rear gardens of 66 and 68 Walnut Way). The 
applicant has demonstrated that these trees can be safely retained. In order to ensure this is the 
case should permission be granted a Tree Protection condition should be included. In addition, a 
hard and soft landscape scheme will need to be submitted and agreed prior to commencement.  
 

Page 44



Land Contamination – Due to the former use of the site as an electrical sub-station, the presence 
of contaminated land is possible.  This may be dealt with by the imposition of planning conditions 
requiring investigations and, if necessary, mitigation works.   
 
Education – the dwellings will generate a demand for primary and secondary school places which 
cannot be met within the capacity of existing facilities.  A contribution towards the cost of delivering 
additional school places is therefore sought by the County Council.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that this proposal has addressed the concerns 
raised in relation to earlier schemes and would present a sustainable development that would 
accord with local and national planning policies.  It is, therefore recommended that planning 
permission be granted, subject to the conditions discussed within this report.   
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 

123 
 
 

  
 
 

 
  

 

1 9

5

22

28

16

38

46

33

C H I G W E LL P A R K  D R I V E

L Y N D H U R ST R I SE

D r ai n

Pond

D r a
i n

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 5 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2723/13 
Site Name: 30 Lyndhurst Rise, Chigwell 

IG7 5BA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 46



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2723/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 30 Lyndhurst Rise 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5BA 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: TAJ Uddin Ahmed, Azima Khatun, Joygun Nessa 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing garage and erection of proposed two storey 
side extension and single storey rear extension incorporating a 
ground floor bedroom and accessible wet room. New paved patio 
to rear. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=558293 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 The proposed window opening in the east flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with 
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of 
the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that 
condition. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g)) 
 
Description of site 
 
Lyndhurst Rise is located within the built up area of Chigwell. The existing building is a two storey 
semi detached property located within a relatively long, narrow plot. The site slopes sharply from 
east to west and then levels out. The surrounding buildings are two storey semi detached 
dwellings, some of which have been extended to the side and rear. The application site is not 
located within the boundaries of the Metropolitan Green Belt and it is not in a conservation area. 
 

Page 47



Description of Proposal 
 
The proposed development is for a first floor element to be built over an existing single storey 
garage on the side elevation. The extension will be 2.5m wide and have an eaves height of 5.2m. 
This extension joins with the existing roof and matches the existing pitch. The application also 
includes a single storey rear extension 4.1m deep, 9.2m wide and a maximum height of 3.8m. 
 
Relevant History 
 
No relevant history  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2: Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
DBE9: Loss of Amenity 
DBE10: Residential Extensions 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in existing 
plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight 
 
Consultation carried out and summary of representations received   
 
5 Neighbours consulted – 
 
32 LYNDHURST RISE – OBJECTION – The excessive height of the extension will cause 
significant loss of light to our property.  
 
28 LYNDHURST RISE – OBJECTION – The excessive height of the extension will cause a loss of 
light and outlook to our property 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – OBJECTION – The proposed height of the pitched roof will 
cause significant loss of natural light to the neighbouring property. However the Parish Council and 
the respective neighbour will remove their objection if the height of the extension were to be 
reduced to 3m.   
 
Issues and considerations  
 
The main issues to consider when assessing this application are the effects of the proposed 
development on the amenities of neighbours and the design in regards to the existing building and 
its setting. 
 
Neighbour Amenity 
 
The first floor extension is set 0.85m from the boundary and 4m from the habitable areas of the 
neighbouring house at 28 Lyndhurst Rise. Moreover, no 28 is situated on land some 0.5m higher 
than the application site. As a consequence of that relationship it will not cause any harm to the 
living conditions of neighbouring properties. 
 
The single storey rear extension reaches a maximum height of 3.8m where it adjoins the rear wall 
of the house, reducing in height to 2.8m at its rear elevation.  It is sited such that it would leave a 
gap of 0.85m from the boundary with no.28. The extension projects 3m on the boundary with the 
neighbouring property of no.32. It then steps in 1m and extends a further 1m, giving a total 
projection of 4m from the existing rear building wall. 

Page 48



 
The Parish Council and the adjacent neighbours are objecting on the basis that the extension is 
too high, causing a loss of natural light to the neighbouring properties. It is acknowledged that the 
rear extension will be visible from neighbouring residential outlook, but there is nothing unusual 
about that. 
 
The extension is of a single storey design that leaves a reasonable gap of 0.85m from the 
boundary with 28 Lyndhurst Rise. A high and well established hedge is situated on this boundary 
which acts as a screen. Were this screen removed, boundary treatment will still obscure the 
majority of the development. As stated above, no 28 is situated on land some 0.5m higher than the 
application site therefore the highest point of the proposal.  In the circumstances the visual impact 
of the rear extension would be significantly mitigated and be little greater than that of a permitted 
development extension. 
 
The extension will be situated on marginally higher ground than no.32. The degree of change in 
level is not of an order that would result in the extension appearing materially higher than its 
maximum height of 3.8m when seen from this neighbour. Furthermore only a 3m projection of the 
extension is situated on the shared boundary, with the rest recessed 1m, and the height of the 
extension would reduce along its projection from the existing rear wall.  Having regard to the scale, 
design and siting of the proposed rear extension its visual impact when seen from no. 32 is found 
to also not be harmful. 
 
Taken as a whole, the proposed extensions would safeguard the living conditions of neighbours.  
 
The application also proposes a paved area to the rear. It would be some 300mm above ground 
level and project 2.5m from the rear wall of the proposed single-storey extension.  Boundary 
treatment approximately 1.8m high on either side will prevent any potential overlooking into private 
areas of neighbouring properties, but would not be so high it could appear excessively overbearing 
when seen from either neighbouring property.  
 
From the above appraisal the proposal does not harm the living conditions of the neighbours and 
therefore complies with policy DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.   
 
Design 
 
The first floor extension above the existing garage is of a reasonable size and design that respects 
the existing building. As such it will not appear overly dominant within the street scene of 
Lyndhurst Rise.  
 
The addition brings the first floor of no.30 to within 0.85m of the boundary with the neighbour of 
no.28. Currently the two storey element of no.28 is situated 4m from the proposed extension. This 
neighbour is also located on higher ground than the application property. As such, if the neighbour 
was to extend in a similar way to this application the eaves and ridge heights of the two properties 
will not clash and there would be a minimum separation of 1.7m between the flank walls. As a 
consequence of that relationship a potential terracing effect would not arise and the semi detached 
character of the locality would be maintained.      
 
The single storey rear extension is of a conventional design which respects the existing building. 
Furthermore it will not be visible when viewed from the public areas of Lyndhurst Rise. 
 

Page 49



Conclusion  
 
The extensions are of a conventional design that respect the existing building and will not cause 
undue harm to the living conditions of the neighbouring properties. As such the application 
complies with the relevant policies of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and with the 
objectives of the NPPF. 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 371 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 13-14

	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	67 Development Control

	7 Development Control

